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wae
Vision

BORMEERETIRRY Bk MEATMRNEEEER -
To improve the quality of life for our community through continuous enhancement of our
electrical and mechanical engineering services.

PN
Ap

Mission

& F Customer
REBBENIREIER  UWnEREFPHTE -
Providing quality engineering solutions to satisfy our customers’ needs.

BT Staff
BY Y EBMNE ITHE  WESMENIIERSE -

Developing a competent workforce and maintaining a harmonious environment.

EBF9 Organisation

EEMEBERMNTIENE - IREEERE -

Keeping pace with technology development and process improvement for service
enhancement.
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Values

FE Integrity
BPIRFFHIE - B RIFBIEET -

We uphold honesty and integrity to embrace an ethical culture.

H @ ARTE Service Excellence
BMREEZEAE  8WE - AR GEEE IR -

We provide safe, reliable, efficient, cost-effective and quality services.

B1E Caring
BMAEET  FEPNMEAR  WERIRR -

We care for our staff, customers, community and the environment.

A& BZN Customer Focus

RMREFPHZRFEZ  BHMELBN  BBRERIREAR - UBREFHEEMIE -

We focus on the needs of our customers and provide engineering solutions in a proactive and
responsible manner to win their trust and support.

7A¥E Commitment
BT EFEGE -
We do what we promise.
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BREEE
Executive Board

=J& Chairman

BERARF#
Mr Wai Chi-sing, JP

BRETSEWER (I7%)
Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

& Members

REBATFAL | BKIEAT ML

Mr Chan Chi-ming, JP , Mr Sit Wing-hang, Alfred,
ERBREIMNER (IH) 2 BETREEESEBLIE (KETREER) BEIRBRIER/ZERS
Deputy Secretary for Development (Works)2 General Manager, EMSTF (Director of Electrical Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD

and Mechanical Services)

*E Secretary

* MREAFHLTHEEZRBRIMER(TH)222013F11712H
Mr Lam Tin-sing, Enoch, JP was Deputy Secretary for Development (Works)2
up to 12 November 2013

B A * RN HERETREERIE R/ AEREE2013F12H20R
WETREFEL(TWE Mr Woo Kin-ming, JP was Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD up to
Departmental Secretary, EMSD 20 December 2013
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Management Board

=J& Chairman

1 BRI AR 4 £
Mr Chan Fan, Frank, JP
HETRREEESHLR
(KEIREER)
General Manager, EMSTF
(Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services)

A& Members
2EXKEARTEHLE

Mr Sit Wing-hang, Alfred, JP

WETRERE R LERS
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD

At EAFMAE
Mr Ho Sai-king, JP

HE TIRZRIEE R/
Assistant Director/1, EMSD

4 FHRAKE
Mr Li Ying-ming, Larry

WETIZZMRER?
Assistant Director/2, EMSD

5BERAKFHL
Mr Tai Tak-him, JP

WETIEEEERA
Assistant Director/3, EMSD

6 EBEF L

Ms Law Suet-fan, Rebecca

HETIZZ I BUSIE
Finance Manager, EMSD

TEEEERE
Mr Law Fuk-ki

WETEZEE THEEE
Staff Relations Officer, EMSD

#ME Secretary

BEREE
Mr Chow Chor-tim

WETIREF FWE
Departmental Secretary, EMSD

HEAA TR LT HERETIRZRZEREE
BRI5Z2013412 A20H

Mr Woo Kin-ming, JP was Deputy Director/
Trading Services, EMSD up to 20 December 2013

RABATHTHERETEENEERNE
2013%12H29H

Mr Cheung Ping-kuen, Michael, JP was Assistant
Director/1, EMSD up to 29 December 2013

SREDE S A M EME TIRERNIEER2E2013F
8A7H

Mr Cheung Kwok-fai was Assistant Director/2,
EMSD up to 7 August 2013
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General Manager’s Report

PR MR A 460 =

Mr Chan Fan, Frank, JP
WEIELELSELE

General Manager, EMSTF
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We are happy to see a more energised workforce, where

colleagues at every level of the organisation now talk
about “public value” in the course of their work. This is a
tell-tale sign that the concept of “public value” has sunk

We are pleased to report the
performance of our Trading Services
in terms of our economic, social and
environmental responsibilities. The report
aims to help our stakeholders better
understand our work and priorities, and
invite feedback and communication.

GOOD PROGRESS IN FIVE-
YEAR GOAL

Our five-year goal for the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Trading Fund is
to “create public value for community
betterment through partnership
with our clients”. This goal remains
unchanged and is the common thread
weaving through all EMSTF activities. In
terms of financial performance, EMSTF
continued to be stable and achieved all

its targets in 2013/14.

CHANNELLING RESOURCES
TO THE COMMUNITY

Our revenue in 2013/14 was
HK$5,020 million which slightly
increased over the preceding year,
attributable to increased client service
needs. In line with our aim to operate
with minimal profit so as to enable
clients to retain more funds and better

n.

their services for the community, our
return on revenue was abated to
5.3%.

BECOMING A TRADE
MODEL

I am grateful for the various
accomplishments in becoming a trade
model for the E&M industry — one of
the five strategies to help us achieve our
five-year corporate goal. Initiatives such
as launching the TV series “Engineering,
Life and Dreams” in collaboration with
Radio Television Hong Kong, enhancing
remuneration for our technician trainees
and encouraging contractors to improve
wages and working conditions for E&M
engineering staff have worked well with
the trade in promoting its status and
attracting talent. We shall further our
efforts on this front.

ENCOURAGEMENT FROM
CUSTOMERS

EMSTF has made impressive headway
in stakeholder engagement. Engaging
with customers is a key activity, and
the best proof of success is the record
high Customer Satisfaction Index
of 6.22 on a scale of 8 in the latest

EMSTF Customer Opinion Survey.
The good rating is certainly the result
of staff's increased understanding
of service value and commitment to
service excellence.

STAFF ENGAGEMENT
YIELDS RESULTS

Internally, staff engagement has also
yielded results. There is a stronger
sense of teamwork and spirit of
cooperation. An example is the EMSD
Staff Club, which now has a higher
participation level and offers a wider
range of activities that are more
in tune with the times. As senior
management, we also encourage staff
to cultivate interests on top of work
and family, such as sports or union
activities. We are also delighted to
report fewer staff complaints and zero
abuse of sick leave this year, and to
see that staff issues were resolved via
existing channels and mechanisms.
Thanks to the hard work of all parties
concerned, staff engagement is in
good shape.
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General Manager’s Report
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“PUBLIC VALUE"” SINKING IN

Above all else, we are happy to see
a more energised workforce, where
colleagues at every level of the
organisation now talk about “public
value” in the course of their work. This
is a tell-tale sign that the concept of
“public value” has sunk in.

By “public value”, we mean to focus on
contributing to people’s quality of life
and well-being through innovative work
and best engineering practices, with
an understanding of the true meaning
of service. To reinforce the culture, we
are working within the Department to
better define and operationalise our
staff’s “service values”, so that they can
translate “public value” into action in the
context of their day-to-day operations.
Hopefully, this will evolve over time as
part and parcel of our service culture.

Looking ahead, as we must keep pace
with the times and social development,
we need to work harder and smarter on
the following fronts.

KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT

Our current knowledge management
tends to focus on engineering skills

rather than soft skills. Soft skills, such

as critical thinking, public relations
and communication as well as crisis
management, are essential for handling
a major incident. Currently these soft
skills often reside in a few experienced
officers, rather than in an objective,
documented form, which impedes the
transfer of knowledge. Our challenge
is to make knowledge transfer more
systematic.

Our knowledge management may also
have to evolve in due course to add a
process management dimension, so that
it can better align with our operational
needs.

PRE-EMPTING AND
MANAGING ISSUES

It is important that our colleagues
become more sensitive to seemingly
small but critical issues that may have
major impact on the community. For
instance, the operation of a new system
may trigger fears that the public’s safety
or quality of life could be compromised,
when such concerns need not have
arisen if the issues had been foreseen
and managed in good time. Despite the
fact that our staff have become more
innovative in recent years, we can still

enhance our sensitivity to critical issues,
and our skills, to pre-empt and manage
issues in a timely and systematic
manner.

VOTE OF THANKS

EMSD is privileged to have many
roles and to be connected to diverse
stakeholders. We are grateful to all
of them for giving us trust, support
and advice over the years. Our staff,
of course, are the backbone of our
operations, and our achievements are
only possible through their integrity,
commitment and outstanding service.
With their support, we have no doubt
the Department’s unique value and
service culture will scale new heights.

Chan Fan, Frank

General Manager,

Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund
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Operations Review and Outlook

BEKEAFMHL

Mr Sit Wing-hang, Alfred, JP
BIREREREERY

Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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The Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund performed well in
2013/14, meeting its financial target
while making good progress in the first
year of its five-year plan to attain our
new corporate goal.

TARGETS AND PROGRESS

Total revenue for 2013/14 was HK$5,020
million (2012/13: HK$4,643 million)
and return on revenue (ROR) was 5.3%
(2012/13: 6.9%). The slight increase in
revenue reflected increasing client service
needs. The drop in ROR reflected an
increase in operating expenses and also
our commitment to operate at a narrow
profit margin, on the understanding
that a dollar we save for the client is a
dollar more it can spend on serving the
community.

Last year we reported a new corporate
goal for EMSTF of “creating public value
for community betterment through
partnership with our clients”, with a plan
to achieve it in five years from 2013/14
via five strategies. We are happy to note
that good progress has been made in
2013/14 under each of the strategies,
namely, delivering excellent service,
becoming a trade model, building
capacity and caring culture, enhancing
knowledge management and sustaining
green operation.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND
MILESTONES

In terms of client work, each strategic
business unit has accomplished major
projects or taken on new operation
and maintenance (O&M) services that
created public value. For example, we
took on O&M services at the newly built
North Lantau Hospital, facilitated the
relocation of Hongkong Post’s postal

services to the new Central Mail Centre,
and began providing maintenance
service for all footbridge lifts and
escalators in Hong Kong to help
promote universal accessibility.

Another milestone was our timely
completion of the installation of
the world’s largest movable Seaport
Passenger Boarding Bridges at the Kai
Tak Cruise Terminal, which officially
opened in June 2013. We have also
taken up the maintenance services of
the Terminal’s engineering systems since
2013/14. In all these instances, our role
was either to facilitate clients’ provision
of new services or to help take existing
services to a new level.

As we reported last year, we have
adopted five strategies in order to
achieve our new corporate goal.
Underpinning these strategies is our
emphasis on innovation, where staff are
encouraged to work creatively, using
technology or other means, so that
more can be achieved for clients and
the public with fewer resources.

A case in point is the patent-winning
Constant Current Regulator Testing
Platform created by our airport
team during the year. It allows our
maintenance staff to conduct tests
of airfield ground lighting anytime,
regardless of weather conditions, thus
enhancing maintenance efficiency
while reducing disruption to runway
operations.

MANPOWER CHALLENGE

Despite what has been achieved, EMSTF
is not without its challenges. Indeed, the
key challenge currently facing the entire
E&M industry in Hong Kong is tight
manpower supply. Our Department, as

BMBBRAEEIEREEAE
AR HAM BB TE - BREA
ELOHMER AREPMARMSE
% o

Staff are encouraged to work
creatively, using technology or other
means, so that more can be achieved
for clients and the public with fewer
resources.
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Operations Review and Outlook
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Our Department has made
our contribution in the past
year to promote the industry
in a bid to lure more young

people to it. ’ ’
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one of the key stakeholders in the E&M
industry, has made our contribution in
the past year to promote the industry
in a bid to lure more young people to
it. For example, we collaborated with
Radio Television Hong Kong in launching
the TV series “Engineering, Life and
Dreams” in January 2014 and joined
16 other E&M organisations to hold the
annual "E&M Trades Expo — Manpower
Recruitment” event in February 2014,
with promising results.

We believe aspiring youngsters will find
in the E&M industry a rewarding career
that is professional, well recognised
by the public at large, valuable to the
community and less susceptible to the
cyclical ups and downs of the economy.
Also worth noting is the fact that capital
funding for E&M work is on the rise,
as in the Government’s unprecedented
recent one-off grant of HK$13 billion to
the Hospital Authority (HA) to help fund
improvement programmes at HA facilities
over the next ten years. This and other
developments will no doubt boost E&M
service demand and create more career
opportunities. We look forward to seeing
more young people join our profession
and take it to new horizons.

THREAT OF AGING ASSETS

We also face the territory-wide challenge
of aging engineering assets, which is
part and parcel of the issue of aging
buildings and facilities. Those buildings
and facilities built in the 1970s and
1960s are now in their fourth and fifth
decade. To ensure the continued smooth
functioning of the city’s infrastructure,
we urgently need to raise awareness of
the importance of asset management
and promote good practices. It is in
this spirit that we have begun helping
clients to obtain ISO 55001 certification
for critical engineering assets. This
specification helps ensure that assets are
properly maintained and that asset life is
maximised.

This also dovetails with our strategy of
becoming a trade model, as we believe
it is our responsibility as a government
department to establish, in due course,
benchmarks of maintenance criteria
and requirements for typical E&M
installations, as a reference for the trade
to follow. Our work in ISO 55001 for
clients is a step in the right direction.

B =5 rangs
P S MR B A — R
TRBRY —ERERELE
BB - 2 T -

We believe that it is
our responsibility as a
government department
to establish, in due course,
benchmarks of maintenance
criteria and requirements for
typical E&M installations, as
a reference for the trade to

follow. ’ ’

GOING AND STAYING GREEN

The EMSTF has made proactive efforts
to be green, energy efficient and
environment-friendly wherever possible.
Over the past years, our colleagues
have helped government bureaux and
departments achieve energy savings
through the installation of more
energy efficient engineering systems
and the implementation of energy
saving best practices. In the long run,
the challenge will be one of helping
our clients to make good use of the
best practices through behaviour
changes and other means, in order to
take the Government’s energy saving
achievements to a new height. We shall
continue to bring in advanced energy
saving technologies and maintain

engineering systems at their best energy
saving performance level during their
life cycle, so that our client bureaux and
departments are always at the forefront
of green operations in Hong Kong.

STAFF: MAKING THE
ACHIEVEMENTS POSSIBLE

I would like to take this opportunity
to thank all EMSTF staff for the
good results in 2013/14. They are
the key driving force behind all the
organisation’s achievements. Their can-
do spirit and professionalism are the
reason for the near 200 appreciation
letters we received from different levels
of staff at client departments. As the
EMSTF Customer Satisfaction Index
2014 hit a record high of 6.22 out of
8, further improvements in customer
satisfaction will certainly be a big
challenge to us in the coming years.
Even so, with the usual resilience and
commitment of our staff, we would
strive for further breakthroughs in our
services to our customers and to create
more public value to the community.

Our gratitude also goes to our clients
for their trust, to contractors and
consultants for their service, to the
trade and other stakeholders for their
support, and to our Executive Board
members for their guidance and advice.
We look forward to delivering greater
value to the community and making
Hong Kong a better place for all.

Alfred W H Sit
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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BPmERBRFPHE REHET  WELSEIEPRIANEH
BRRORAZARAER  BAREZIBELSMEE A
REEINBEE -

As an E&M engineering service provider for the public
sector, the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
aspires to make a difference for our society in everything it
does. Our professional services are focused on improving
the quality of life for everyone in Hong Kong. After all,
when we serve our clients well, take good care of our staff,
and make sustainable use of natural resources in the course
of our work, then we are caring for society and creating the
“public value” we aim to deliver.
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BB IR ENEERER
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UEEMRMBEZTAELENS
BEMBREQNHFERS -

Health and public hygiene
services are essential to the
public. We provide operation
and maintenance (O&M)
services for public hospitals
and institutions, assist in
setting up new venues and
medical equipment asset
management, so as to
facilitate the provision of safe
and high-quality health and
public hygiene services for
everyone in Hong Kong.

BREQARGE

2013/14F E - ZMABREER (B
ER) MEBEESRHENREHERTIE
R BEREMEXEREAABERIEAMNE
ZAGE -

36 R UE L) B& B B 720135F9 A R 46 75 B
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BriE i RAEM SR BRFSN - BIETE
WRE R RR L E M A B TR A AR
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BEEER EBEHBABRNCESM
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We provide professional project management services for setting up the new Renal
Centre at Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital which commenced service in
December 2013. It signifies a new generation renal centre combined with cutting edge
technologies and infection control design in operation



BN REREEEFEREE -
— VA B R RTS -

Our experienced operation and maintenance team provides
professional one-stop services for the newly built North Lantau
Hospital.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC
HYGIENE

The year 2013/14 saw a steady rise in
our services for the Hospital Authority
(HA) and Department of Health (DH),
underscoring the support role we play
in public health.

In addition to taking up the O&M
services for the North Lantau Hospital,
which began offering patient services
in phases from September 2013, we
have also been preparing to expand
our services for other public hospitals
by engaging in pilot O&M contracts for
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital,
Haven of Hope Hospital, United
Christian Hospital and Yan Chai Hospital.

Demand for hospital engineering
services is set to increase as the
Government has significantly increased
its recurrent subvention to HA in recent
years, while also separately funding
major capital works programmes for
HA. Projects in the pipeline include the

AT B A0 2B R ISR 1L 8 B Fie i

Jb KU |1 B8 B /9 B FE F g o O AT B0 2014/156F /£ 56 T =487 A BR

% o RAEARPORBEELEF o

The day procedure centre of the North Lantau Hospital is planned
for service commencement in the fourth quarter of 2014/15. We

ensure proper operation of equipment inside the centre.

development of new major hospitals,
plus expansion and re-development of
United Christian Hospital, Kwong Wah
Hospital, Queen Mary Hospital and Kwai
Chung Hospital.

Other new hospitals include the Hong
Kong Children’s Hospital, which is being
developed as the first specialist paediatric
public hospital in Hong Kong, and a new
hospital for the Kai Tak development
area, which will serve the expanding
Kowloon East population as urban
development continues in the area. We
have been providing professional support
for the advance planning of these new
projects while also preparing ourselves
for their future O&M work.

We play an active role in assisting HA
and DH in renewing and remodelling
existing equipment and venues.
Examples include the provision of
a pharmacy aseptic dispensing unit

for the Princess Margaret Hospital,
technical support for the setting up of
the new Renal Centre at the Pamela
Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital, and
technical assistance for the acquisition
of digital dental X-ray imaging systems
at various public dental clinics.

Targeting to deliver even higher quality
engineering services to HA's engineering
assets to keep them at the best
operating status, we identified renal
equipment as an asset category for pilot
implementation of ISO 55001 asset
management standard. Other assets,
such as lifts and escalators, will follow
suit. Our efforts aim to systematically
optimise the management of assets
in respect of risk assessment and
mitigation, contingency planning and
maintenance scheduling, and ultimately
to enhance the safety and effectiveness
of high quality healthcare services
delivered to the members of the public.

i

f1anos Joy buued 8

TEEEITEN

=—&=

i
W
#
ofF
m
<
7]
—
m
X
0]
°
o
=L
N
=
=
S

15



£

Kd1205 40y Buied BR

“TEESITER

=—&

i
il
B
o
m
<
0
—
m
Py
[0}
°
o
&
N
=
=
o

16

BEIELE
Caring for Society

#20135FE8 ARIA » BRI —ERBRIRE
Em (RN RBEEE] RERM A
2+ DUR A B IR B R 1 R I ERIR I K
BB o

Since August 2013, we have been
providing technical solution for the
implementation of the Retrofitting
Subsidy Scheme for Refuse Collection
Vehicle of Environmental Protection
Department in order to minimise
the environmental nuisance in the
transportation of waste.
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On the environmental front, we assist
HA hospitals in introducing chillers
with higher energy efficiency. In
addition, we also conduct carbon
and energy audits for HA to identify
opportunities of energy saving.

With regard to public hygiene, in
order to facilitate the implementation

emission requirements, new cremators
at the Wo Hop Shek Crematorium and
the Cape Collinson Crematorium in
Chai Wan were commissioned during
the year, with us providing professional
operation and maintenance services
for the electrical and mechanical
installations. Our aim is to facilitate
the provision of efficient and dignified

Mr Ng Kwok-lun, the then Senior
Health Inspector (Cemeteries &
Crematoria) New Territories of the
Food and Environmental Hygiene
Department, commented on our
O&M services at the Wo Hop Shek
Crematorium, notably during the
period prior to Chinese New Year
when cremation demand peaked.

of the Government’s Refuse Collection  cremation services to the community. “Without their contribution and 2
Vehicle (RCV) Retrofitting Scheme, we support, the first Lunar New Year peak ET'.;
have been assisting the Environmental Our work during the year has earned  for the reprovisioned Wo Hop Shek g(?
Protection Department in organising recognition from clients. Ms Winnie Crematorium could not be passed §
workshops, vetting financial subsidy  Yip, Cluster General Manager  without event,” he said. 9;,
applications from private RCV  (Administrative Services), Hong Kong %
operators, and conducting checks of ~ West Cluster Hospitals, Hospital  As always, EMSTF looks forward to 5

retrofitted vehicles.

The Scheme aims to help private
operators fully enclose their RCVs
and install leachate collection tanks
to eliminate public hygiene problems,
such as odour nuisance, dripping of
leachate and spattering of waste,
in preparation for the forthcoming
statutory requirement for all RCVs to
be fully enclosed. EMSTF's support role
in the Scheme will help improve the
environment and roadside hygiene for all.

Cremators are another aspect of public
hygiene services. Meeting the latest

Authority, commented in regard to
urgent repair of an isolation ward
ventilation system, “...the EMSTF
team was able to collaborate with
ward users and our team to overcome
various challenges and complete the
repair process...without disruption of
service to the ward.”

Ms Phyllis Leung, Senior Medical
Technologist of the Department of
Pathology at Kwong Wah Hospital also
noted that our team’s “technical support
is one of the essential factors in providing
good quality services in smooth running
(of the lab) over the years.”

=
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We have been providing profe55|ona| operation and
maintenance services for the electrical and mechanical

improving its support for HA and other
public healthcare and hygiene clients, so
that they may better serve patients and
their families.
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installations at Diamond Hill Crematorium (left) and Cape
Collinson Crematorium (right). It is always in our mind — “With
the hope that the deceased rests in peace, we treat every
cremation procedure professionally with respect, and ensure his/
her family members receive bones ashes as soon as possible”.
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We provide professional E&M services for the stage and theatre equipment in Ko Shan
Theatre New Wing to ensure it is enjoyable for citizens.



RECREATIONAL FACILITIES
AND GOVERNMENT
BUILDINGS

The completion of the Hong Kong
Velodrome (HKV) in Tseung Kwan O
opened in December 2013 marks the
city’s first indoor track cycling venue.
The venue boasts a 250-metre wooden
cycling track, built to international
standards, and seats 3 000 spectators,
enabling Hong Kong to host
international cycling competitions such
as sprint and keirin events.

We helped the Leisure and Cultural
Services Department (LCSD) design
and install a professional timing
system for the Velodrome. The
timing system fully complies with
the International Cycling Union’s
standards, with accuracy up to
1/1000th of a second. We also provide
O&M services for various installations
at the new facility, making extra
efforts to ensure it is reliable and
enjoyable for users.

The Ko Shan Theatre also saw the
completion of a new wing, a fully
enclosed structure that can house
596 audiences, for which we acted

BMBEREBBBIR RIS AP O] AR KR E—
[GREREHK ] eERETHEBENE - BXERE - FRERMSREM o

We ensure non-interrupted smooth operation of newly upgraded postal
equipment — the Optical Video-coding Integrated System, for more
accurate and rapid mail sorting in Hongkong Post’s Central Mail Centre.

as building services consultant and
provided E&M as well as building
services engineering design.

During 2013/14, several government
venues came into operation. An
example is the new Kowloon City
Government Offices, a mixed-use
government building in Kowloon City
for which we provide O&M services for
its E&M and building services systems.
Among the new venues opening during
the year was Hongkong Post’s Central
Mail Centre (CMC) in Kowloon Bay. We
helped the client plan and implement
the smooth migration of postal services
to CMC from its International Mail
Centre in Hung Hom, which closed
in early March 2014. We also provide
O&M services for all the newly upgraded
postal equipment at CMC, as well as its
E&M, air-conditioning, electronic and
building services facilities.

One of our new initiatives is to
help government buildings obtain
certification to Building Environment
Assessment Method (BEAM) Plus,

a comprehensive environmental
assessment scheme recognised by
the Hong Kong Green Building
Council. We have already begun the
assessment process for our own EMSD
headquarters building and assessment
results will be available in the fourth
quarter of 2014. Through the BEAM
Plus certification, we tried to set
a successful case of converting an
existing building to a green building
meeting the latest standards.

Upon completion of all assessments,
our headquarters will likely be among
the first in Government to obtain
BEAM Plus for Existing Building,
making the building a greener facility
for our service users and the public
to enjoy. The experience gained can
be applied to help other government
buildings achieve the rating, in
particular existing buildings, which
face more challenges than new
buildings in meeting the BEAM Plus
building performance criteria.
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REEER/E N - Al EMETE
We take the lead to modernise existing
lifts in government premises, being
trade model for the private premises
to follow suit, making the existing
lifts more safe, effective, reliable and
comfortable for the benefit of the
public.
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Aiming to make lifts more safe,
effective, reliable and comfortable
for users and the public, we have
embarked on a lift modernisation
programme for thousands of existing
government lifts since 2013/14.
Completion is scheduled within four

to five years.

During the year, we have continued
to help the Judiciary deploy better
technologies in courts. For example,
we renovated the audio-visual system
of the Technology Court in the High
Court Building for hearing cases
requiring video conferencing and other
As the Court
of Final Appeal will relocate to the

audio-visual systems.

former Legislative Council building,
we shall also be assisting in providing
design and project management
services for its audio-visual system.

Our work also covers data centres,
for which we are providing O&M and
server hosting services at the Kowloon
Bay and Siu Ho Wan Data Centres.

Our Service Level Agreement (SLA)
for O&M of various E&M and building
services systems at the Central
Government Offices and Legislative
Council Complex at Tamar was
successfully renewed in 2013/14, so
that we may continue to serve the
public via servicing these flagship
government buildings. Besides, the
SLA with LCSD was also renewed this
year, extending our partnership to
serve the public.

Our work has been rewarded with
client recognition. Commenting on
EMSTF's service with regard to the
timing system at the HKV, Ms Tina
Tai Yuen-kwan, Manager (Hong Kong
Velodrome & Tseung Kwan O Sports
Ground) of the Leisure and Cultural

“Thanks to
(our team’s) patience in listening to

Services Department said,

client requirements, offer of valuable
technical advice in preparing tender
specifications and constant monitoring
of progress of work, a series of
spectacular events were staged at the
HKV with brilliant success.”

Urgent repairs in government
buildings are often called for to ensure
uninterrupted service provision for
the public during weekdays. A case
in point that won client appreciation
was the swift repair of the power
supply system in the Eastern Law
Courts following a water flooding
incident. Ms Pauline Kwok, First Clerk
of the Eastern Magistrates’ Courts,
complimented our team for carrying
out “urgent works over the weekend
for extensive hours in order to restore
so that all

timely power supply”,

courts and chambers could resume
smooth operation.

A similar case was our prompt repair
work for the Aldrich Bay Government
Primary School, with Headmistress
Ms Cheung Tsun-shan thanking our
colleagues for “the prompt action
and quality service in repairing the
stage lighting system which greatly

enhanced the graduation ceremony”.

As the E&M engineering service
provider for recreational facilities and
government buildings, we attach
great importance to taking care of the
comfort and convenience of the users,
as well as taking the lead in initiatives
such as environmental assessments
and energy management certifications

for buildings.

BEREEENSHERFRASARETREELS A AR NLE  BEETETAZ

—1 - T2 A BR B ARE

The Hong Kong’s first indoor track cycling timing system was designed and installed
by EMSTF, providing timing accuracy up to 1/1000th of a second. This timing system
complies fully with the International Cycling Union’s standards.
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Law and order is essential
to Hong Kong’'s economy
and stability. We assist the
disciplined forces in taking care
of their E&M systems so as
to contribute to maintaining
Hong Kong as one of the
safest regions in the world.
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We jointly designed the keyless Electric Locks Security System in Lo Wu Correctional
Institution (LWCI) with Correctional Services Department. Various functions like
monitoring, recording and identity verification were included in this new system, which
greatly improved the operation efficiency at LWCI.



SECURITY

Several significant engineering
projects for our disciplinary clients
in 2013/14,
most notably the Palletised Cargo

were carried out

Inspection System at the Cathay
Pacific Cargo Terminal for the
Customs and Excise Department
(C&ED) and the keyless Electric Locks
Security System (ELSS) at the Lo
Wu Correctional Institution for the
Correctional Services Department
(CSD).

The Palletised Cargo Inspection
System was designed to address
C&ED’'s need to efficiently inspect a
huge volume of air cargo as Hong
Kong is an international trading hub.
The system expedites the inspection

process by scanning cargoes in form
of pallet and unit load device, which
considerably reducing the time and
efforts taken to detect contraband
and other abnormalities.

The ELSS, jointly designed by
EMSTF and CSD, is the first
system of its kind in Hong Kong'’s
correctional institutions. It integrates
CCTV, intercom, call button and
computerised e-lock subsystems to
verify the identity of the requesting
staff for access control, making
physical keys no longer required in
daily locking or unlocking of cell
gate doors at the institution. CSD
officers may now operate cell gate
doors directly from the control room,

BMABEBBART TERREENAOMEESEERER
g AMRABEMERIBCE -

We designed, installed and maintain the new Palletised
Cargo Inspection System for the Customs and Excise
Department to improve the cargo inspection efficiency.

greatly reducing response time, which
can be critical in case of emergency.
The new system also eliminates the
need for officers to collect the keys
from the key room, a distance saving
can be up to several hundred metres,
greatly boosting efficiency.

The ELSS has won client recognition
“Best
(Entrepreneurial

and also received the
Innovation
Innovation) Special Mention” award
at the Hong Kong ICT Awards
2014. It may be extended to other
institutions in due course, taking
security in Hong Kong's correctional

institutions to a new level.
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Caring for Society
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We assisted Hong Kong Police Force reinforce border security
by building a new border fence protection system at Lok Ma
Chau section for the implementation of reduction of Frontier
Closed Area.

% BlanB R RN R BN KRBT #B
BB B F i B v RO R B B XL EE AR
WAL - AMEMEOBESE  #
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ERBRERMRIIRHERRKREE
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EERNEXRR  [EFETELHK
TOHERAGEEEXME  RR
ERRTHBNMARRE  IBEMNEX
SERIRE - |

HEaRERRMABNRE - LB
P BRHRERETRRR  REEE
RE BRRESBERF  BEFID
FME2LABBRERTRIBRT



In another development, EMSTF started
to provide professional E&M support
for the construction of specialised live
fire simulators at the new Tseung Kwan
O Fire Services Training School for the
Fire Services Department, with tender
exercise commenced during the year.
The facility will provide full-size mock-
ups of high-rise apartments, ships,
aircrafts, vehicles, railway stations,
refilling stations, oil and LPG tanks to
make the fire fighting and rescue drills
more realistic.

The new facility will enhance the quality
of simulation training and build up the
fire fighting capability of the trainees,
improving the community’s fire safety
in due course. We care about the
lives and properties of the public, and
we are proud of our contribution to
the provision of effective and reliable
training for our fire fighters.

The project to design and build a
modern fence protection system for
the Hong Kong Police Force (HKPF)
at the Lok Ma Chau and Ta Kwu Ling
sections progressed well during the
year to support the implementation
of reduction of Frontier Closed Area.
In addition, the renewal of a six-year
Service Level Agreement with HKPF will
enable us to contribute further through
O&M services for the Police.

We also continued to provide
maintenance services to various E&M,
electronic and building services systems
for disciplined forces, such as the two
C&ED Fixed X-ray Vehicle Inspection
Systems at the Lok Ma Chau and Hong
Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor
border control points. It is on-going
E&M support services like these that

have helped our client departments
improve their efficiencies, so that our
community can continue to thrive in a
safe and stable social environment.

Many client departments have expressed
appreciation of our services. Ms Chung
Chi-lan, Senior Superintendent (Works
and Planning) of CSD noted, “The full
backup from EMSD has helped us in
maintaining our normal day-to-day
operations without any disruption”. Mr
Ricky Chan Wing-leung, Superintendent
of Police, Weapons Training Division
of the Hong Kong Police College, also
acknowledged EMSTF's professionalism
in installing a new motion simulation
system. “With full devotion, diligence
and professional knowledge of your
staff, these challenges were overcome
and the project was completed smoothly
and efficiently”, he wrote.

Maintenance of law and order is
essential to our community. We play
a key support role in ensuring that
the disciplined forces are equipped
with effective, appropriate and well
maintained engineering systems, making
Hong Kong a safer place to live.

BB ERZALESERERE  ETNEFTERE
ZROEERERS - RMEMEBOREE  EB
BRAFIRE THERE - EHRTELE -

We continued to provide maintenance services to
various E&M, electronic and building services systems
for disciplined forces. It is on-going E&M support
services that have helped our client departments
improve their efficiencies, so that our community
can continue to thrive in a safe and stable social
environment.
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BMRHEE10 0002H5HBRREHEIXNEERE - R
R E KB1TE Al & 2 FBEAMITEE o
We provide professional maintenance services to over 10 000 EBE  OROEHBEEENTE -

airfield ground lightings, ensuring runways and taxiways are safe
for taking-off, landing and manoeuvring of planes.

o)

BPHRGBEREEBEEAER -
BSERR (BRER) REP—ETE
EF BAAKERREHRZEEETIE
ABHEERERY BHERER
TERE  TIKBEBENERFRSS - &K
Pith REE TR AT ERFT - ABRTS 7K
FiE T NIRRT - ST BRM
REZNRFRBEKFHE  BRAA
EMERRESAINTERE - B
H @A - REBREREERER
%5 o RAIFAAIRFH B 2R T RAE
BRI E BRERE

EMZERB I E - BRMILHE &2 sk
BERSRF BEIHBLBREFINT
RAGE - flaniEEm THE  mEr
DHE - FR - RAIEKERKRFE
TEWEE [BEERBEH AT
Bl REEERARE - BARFE
B - ERECABREREZEAR
FETRER R ERERR M ERE
BETRE  TYRRAFE - EHEK
RIS THMABEREREEOBE -
FRPECARATHILERERE
THE - WHADEWBEENTE - S8
AFaBEHA FAENER BER
2013 FEBUSRETHH o

2013/14FEEXMERNTZEBEE S -
LA B AP 19 B R 382 =5 745 & ST AK A R B iy

WEHEEAERRARL - BRFEEERN
2013F6 AERAE - H{EAM R
BARK - hn3E T B 75 A BIER # b
DAL - WETIREEBEES EHRE
EERBEREREEARA I REEMB
FERNRHEE RFR R ML - #BHE
EEENAEG -

BRI - RAKEEEENELHEN
TEERBER  TIEERRY - ERE
EEAFNEE  KALENE BN
ERNEBREKEHNMEABBTRN o

ERERER - RANRBETOZT
b o BT RAS 800EPEAT & E 4
(ERERS - Mo e RS EEFF P15
% M) AR A AR S - B APIRO B 8 AR 7S B B
FRBBTEFIRE R R AEE
WHY BRI AR

BHEAEEREAE  BMEEB A/
BB FE & EE B RHPAS 55/ISO
5500133 FE M EMR TIE - BRKE\{LEK
MEESHREER - BMBENERK
EERG - B ENENRE R F
T+ BT MEE A I F EIPAS
S5RREE 2R RELIEE—Z ek
MEREZHHBERNEREE - TSR
MEBER - HHRARAENKE - R
BIERMEMEESAENSEER -

HPNEECESKEFTERSEERE  KERFT —EBEERFAL

ARG - WBUSHEA o BIEF & A EE AR ER RS

Our maintenance team jointly designed and patented the Constant
Current Regulator Testing Platform with the Airport Authority

Hong Kong, allowing us to test the airfield ground lighting indoor
and work faster, minimising disruption to runway operations.



B R P ERPIEREE S B R B - TAIIN A B D BT AL

REIRT

Station as shown.

TRANSPORT

Our work in the transport sector spans
Hong Kong’s air, sea and land transport
infrastructure. The Airport Authority
Hong Kong (AA) is a key client for
which we maintain several crucial
systems at the Hong Kong International
Airport, including its airfield ground
lighting, baggage handling, wastewater
treatment and air-conditioning systems.
We also provide O&M services to
government departments stationed
at Chek Lap Kok via Service Level
Agreements (SLAs), such as the recently
renewed five-year SLA with the Civil
Aviation Department for providing
O&M services to all its airport facilities
including its new headquarters. All these
services are provided with the ultimate
goal of giving the public a comfortable
and pleasant airport experience.

Increasing air traffic and adverse
weather conditions combine to pose
challenges to the maintenance of
outdoor airport systems, such as
airfield ground lighting. During the

LNIE R RIS ER E R RV R R A E - (R o
We assist client departments in procuring special purpose
vehicles. We also provide maintenance services for some of these
vehicles, such as Rapid Intervention Vehicle in Main Airport Fire

year, EMSTF and AA jointly developed
an innovative solution to this problem
with the creation of our Constant
Current Regulator Testing Platform.
This enables brightness stability tests
and basic lamp failure detection checks
to be conducted indoors at any time.
This has greatly enhanced our airfield
ground lighting maintenance efficiency,
allowing us to work in any weather
and also reducing disruption to runway
operations. The design was successfully
patented at the end of 2013 in
recognition of its novelty, creativity and
practicality.

Among the milestone projects
completed in 2013/14, Kai Tak Cruise
Terminal stands out. It officially opened
in June 2013 when the first berth
commenced operations, boosting Hong
Kong’'s position as an international
cruise hub. EMSD played a key role in
the design and installation of various
E&M systems, including the world’s
largest movable Seaport Passenger

BT ERFE R R B e S 5E 5o K B BRI B TE A2 » [8F K F5%
IEF 72013466 A 12 B {Z R E sp 5 5E o

Upon the timely completion of our work on the first berth,
Mariner of the Seas successfully docked at the Kai Tak Cruise
Terminal on 12 June 2013.

Boarding Bridges, at the Cruise Terminal
for the Tourism Commission.

Meanwhile, good progress was made
in our work on the Replacement and
Upgrading of Vessel Traffic Services
System for Marine Department,
a multi-year project that involves
the deployment of state-of-the-art
technologies to provide more efficient
and effective vessel traffic surveillance
and management capabilities in the
Hong Kong waters.

Our support services for land transport
are many and varied. Apart from
looking after the maintenance of
about 5 800 government vehicles
and meeting the performance pledge
agreed with our client departments, our
vehicle engineering team also provides
procurement services for all general
and special purpose vehicles for various
government departments.

f1anos Joy buued ERE

TEERRITEW

=—&"

i
.m
B3
ofF
m
<
[
—
l
X
®
°
o
=L
N
2
=
S

27



K12120S 10} Bulied BREE

E"TERRTTEW

i
H
B
Iff
m
<
0
—
m
X
(]
°
o
&
N
=
=
o

28

el
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ISO 55001 RE A BB BB B - IRITRE R A] B IR D AR EE T RIEBRHZE -
ISO 55001 certification helps optimise traffic lights in order to enhance equipment availability and
minimise disruption to the public due to fault signal.
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On the maintenance side, we have
taken the initiative to optimise asset life
and quality for the government fleet
via certification to Asset Management
System PAS 55/ISO 55001 standards.
The initiative began with ambulances
under the Fire Services Department
(FSD), all of which have now been
certified with PAS 55 standards. The
certification has obtained cooperation
and support from FSD, demonstrating
our close partnership with the client.
The community counts on a reliable
ambulance fleet in life-critical situations,
and the certification effort demonstrates
the extra care we take in this regard.

As to vehicle procurement, we not only
assist user departments in designing
and acquiring vehicles but also ensure
that the models acquired best fit their
operational needs. We make sure that
the acquired vehicles meet various
local and international safety as well
as environmental regulations and
standards, which in turn makes the
government fleet become a model for
the rest of the community.

During the year, we continued to provide
project design and implementation
services for various systems used
within Hong Kong's road tunnels. We
also continued to provide professional
advisory and technical services with
regard to E&M, building services,
electronics and traffic control and
surveillance systems for major transport
infrastructure projects, including those
for the Central-Wan Chai Bypass and
Island Eastern Corridor Link, Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, Trunk Road
for Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary
Control Point and Tseung Kwan O — Lam
Tin Tunnel.

The Transport Department (TD) has
also entrusted projects to us for the
management of the replacement of road
tunnel ventilation and traffic control and
surveillance systems for the Cross Harbour
Tunnel and Shing Mun Tunnel respectively.
Furthermore, we are also responsible for
the provisioning of electronic variable-

BIRERNTSE TERERIATERRSE BT ABENEARKE  AHREMHEGS
fEPHE) R o
We provided technical support to Highways Department and Civil Engineering and Development
Department to install lifts at walkways, providing convenient barrier-free access to the public.

message systems with LED display
technology at strategic locations, to
disseminate real-time information on
traffic conditions for the convenience of
drivers on key roads and highways.

Pedestrian traffic is another component
of our transport service. The funding for
the refurbishment of the Central-Mid-
Levels Escalator and Walkway System has
been approved, and we aim to finalise
the technical specifications and tendering
arrangement for implementation as soon
as possible. In a separate development,
under the Government’'s “Universal
Accessibility” programme, more than 300
new lifts will be installed at walkways
(i.e. footbridges, elevated walkways and
subways) throughout the territory in the
next few years, providing convenient
barrier-free access to the public, including
wheelchair users. Besides providing
technical support and advisory services to
the relevant departments for the design
and construction works, our subsequent
maintenance services will also see to
it that all walkways lifts and escalators
operate smoothly, to ensure that
walkways stay user-friendly.

Our traffic signal maintenance services
were taken to a new level in the year,
when we introduced an ISO 55001
certification programme that will bring
about a more systematic approach

to the installation, maintenance and
improvement of traffic lights availability.
We also plan to integrate our traffic light
maintenance system with the Geographic
Information System, which will greatly
enhance efficiencies in fault detection
and rectification so as to minimise
disruption of service to the public.

Compliments from clients during the
year covered our service to the Hong
Kong Observatory (HKO). Mr Chan
Pak-wai, Senior Scientific Officer
(Meteorological Forecast System) of
HKO thanked our staff for making
safety improvements to the weather
buoy anemometer mast design. “The
dedicated effort of your team has
enabled the weather buoys to maintain
a high level of service availability with
minimum equipment down time, which
is very important in the assurance of
aviation safety,” he said.

Reliable local and international transport
is the backbone of Hong Kong's
economy and continuing prosperity.
As such, we have spared no effort to
provide appropriate engineering solution
for the community’s transport needs.
We strive to achieve that all road users
and pedestrians, including the physically
challenged, are able to reach their
destinations safely and smoothly.
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RETREERESHOEERR EARES NKERE - A
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One year into the implementation of the five strategies
to achieve EMSTF’s corporate goal of “creating public
value for community betterment through partnership
with our clients”, we are glad to report good progress.

BMEEERETHERER
BB RRHARBRERLIE
IR EREHTHFENT
B BIRBEEEARERL
KRG~ MRE - ATEm R OE -
We value staff and management
communication. A Staff Corner
is set up as a new platform for
dialogue in the headquarters
lobby for staff and management
to post suggestions, questions,
comments and responses.
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EMSTF is focused not only
on how to do its work better,
but also has a clear sense of
why it should do so, namely,
to improve the quality of
life for everyone in Hong
Kong. After all, we believe
it is by having the mind-set
and the passion to serve
the community that we will
create the “public value” we
aim to deliver.
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Our strategic business units and support units have worked together
to roll out key operational initiatives under each of the five strategies:
deliver excellent service, become a trade model, build capacity and caring
culture, enhance knowledge management and sustain green operation.
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THE FIVE STRATEGIES

Deliver Excellent Service

The Customer Satisfaction Index 2014
hit a record high score of 6.22 out of
8, an indication that continuous service
improvements were recognised by client
departments. We are also delighted to
have received almost 200 appreciation
letters from staff of different levels in
client departments in 2013/14, another
measure of client satisfaction.

Excellent service has many facets. We
are focused on a few strategic areas,
such as leveraging the potentials of
Building Information Modelling to
facilitate effective asset management
for providing reliable, efficient and
cost-effective maintenance services
to clients. Asset management is
particularly important to ensuring
uninterrupted service to the public,
especially given the city’s increasingly
aging assets.

BPEDPEESN  REEEE TRETIN
{EREMRT

In this regard, we have proactively
helped clients conduct asset life-
cycle planning and risk-based asset
management of critical systems
such as ambulance fleets and traffic
lights. We have also achieved PAS
55 certification for various asset
systems of our clients and shall
continue to implement for them
asset management systems for other
critical assets.

Excellent service also hinges upon
deployment of new technology. Pilot
implementation of Integrated Building
Management System on 17 sites is in
progress. Various mobile technologies,
including smart phones apps, are in
trial use to facilitate fault reporting
and keeping customer informed of
work progress.

BRREPREER SN - EAKARRN M

We visited CLP Power to exchange views on asset management in order to provide more
reliable, efficient and cost-effective maintenance services for clients.

All strategic business units have been
increasing their use of outsourcing for
routine maintenance and operation
work, while keeping a close eye on
quality supervision. This is a vital step
to release our limited manpower to
take on other critical work for clients
without sacrificing the quality of
our service. In this regard, we are
reviewing our outsourcing contracts
for better service quality control.

Concurrently, a consultant has been
engaged to explore the suitability
of adopting New Engineering
Contract and the study is in good
progress. Meanwhile, a pilot web-
based Performance Monitoring
System for Maintenance Contracts
was launched in January 2014 to
enhance of contractor performance
management.

Become a Trade Model

Our priority is to take the lead in
building a communication platform
for E&M practitioners to share and
implement best practices in operation
and maintenance, maintain high
standards of work safety, and promote
E&M trade.

We drafted the proforma specification
for Electrical Installations Term
Maintenance Contract and are
formulating the best practices for
operation and maintenance of E&M
assets.
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B2 T REIMARE
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BB EBRE R
THE/NER2013/145
F2817 - BNEWEIF
FIMALT

We participated in the
two-day E&M Trades
Expo — Manpower
Recruitment,
organised by the Hong
Kong E&M Trade
Promotion Working
Group in 2013/14 to
attract new blood to
join the industry.
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We held various occupational health

and safety seminars, programmes
and contests for staff and contractors
during the year. We will collaborate
with the trade to review relevant
practices, guidelines and contract
provisions to enhance safety
performance, and revamp our safety
policy and safety handbook.

We promoted the E&M industry by
joining hands with the trade. We
organised the “Hong Kong E&M
Trade (Technical Personnel) — Career
and Development” in March 2013,
attracting 2 700 visitors.

We launched a TV series entitled
“Engineering, Life and Dreams” with
RTHK, broadcast in January 2014. The
nine-episode drama series, supported
by parallel promotional activities, gave
the public a fresh perspective on an
engineering career — what it means,
its thrills and challenges, and how it
benefits the community.

Build Capacity and Caring
Culture

Human resources are the key success
factor in everything we do, hence it is
only by building staff capacity that we
can eventually achieve our corporate
goal. Capacity building means
investing more resources in technical
training and soft skills development
for better results, and also creating a
supportive work environment where
communication between staff and
management is dynamic and effective.

We also endeavour to lead by
example in attracting new blood to
the E&M industry by providing career
opportunities in a safe and healthy
environment.

To attract new talent to the E&M
industry, we upgraded our technician
training scheme, expanded the annual
intake and raised trainee salaries. We
also helped steer and took part in E&M

HMR2014FFOEE —EREERETENSTEEY - RRESHEHERTES
AHEEEN(RESRA) SREER - Hh—SRESHE EREEAS
AR {A] 52 3 455 ) 855 JIEE F
We kicked off a series of promotional activities for the E&M industry in early
2014 with the TV drama series “Engineering, Life and Dreams”, jointly produced
by RTHK and EMSD. One of the episodes was shot in the airport to illustrate
how E&M workers contribute to the smooth operation of airport facilities.

Trades Expo — Manpower Recruitment
in February 2014, organised by the
Hong Kong E&M Trade Promotion
Working Group with representatives
of 17 E&M organisations and utilities.
Both initiatives raised public interest in
E&M engineering and helped attract
young talent to the trade.

To foster staff communication and a
caring culture, many new tools were
rolled out. A new “If | Were DEMS”
Competition was held in 2013 to tap
staff's expectations and encourage
out-of-the-box ideas. A Staff Corner
was set up in the headquarters lobby,
featuring panels on which colleagues
may post suggestions, questions
and views, without prior screening
but subject to a few ground rules,
to which management will post
responses as appropriate.
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Corporate Stewardship

_

TRMBE RERHE Youry
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(WCTEE 3 RHH&
MREfAART
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EARARREREMATENGE R —

AN T e

Py EFEY PR <IfilA
il ANMEERFERA MM
b b LR CEAMARTEER T
SRFEENY -amiaw
Hensanne Tisp

BMBAEET #ORBERIEETINTE - M
ERTERRERNERATENE TREEX
BARTS - 17 B th FIEZ IR R h SR AHRA R -

We care about our staff, listen to and support
their needs. We commission the Hong Kong Family
Welfare Society to provide professional counselling
service for staff members who need it so as to
enable them to cope with stress and manage other
related issues.
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The “If | Were DEMS” Competition was launched in 2013, whereby colleagues presented
various and innovative ideas to enable management to understand staff expectations.
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One of our new initiatives is to organise farewell tea parties for retiring officers to thank
them for their dedicated efforts. Senior management, the retiring officers and their
family members share memorable moments.

Other new initiatives included holding
farewell tea parties for retiring officers
to thank them for their valuable
contribution, and commissioning the
Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
to provide counselling service to any
EMSD staff member who needs it.
These may seem like small gestures,
but we believe they have great
value for recipients. We have also
started recruiting retired staff with
solid experience in specific areas for
short-term contracts to reduce our
colleagues’ workload.

Enhance Knowledge
Management

We continued to develop the
Knowledge Communities to foster a
more effective learning and sharing
culture. We continued to develop
and improve our online Knowledge
Management (KM) Platform, which
serves as a single access point for
colleagues to share and search E&M
knowledge. Recently, the Platform has

EREFRRR S TRITRABES - EAMBMZFERBOTE - REERE

been made available to the seconded
staff via the Government Intranet
so that our colleagues working in
other departments can also share
and keep abreast of the latest expert
knowledge.

To date, 16 E&M Knowledge Areas
have mushroomed throughout EMSD
on a voluntary basis. Each is led by a
Chief Engineer and explores a specific
field of E&M engineering knowledge
of interest to staff members. These
Engineering Areas also include topics
such as management of quality,
contracts, occupational health and
safety, as well as computer services.
Besides E&M Knowledge Areas,
staff also voluntarily set up Interest
Groups to discuss and share working
knowledge and experiences in their
areas of interest.

Concurrently, we sponsored more
than 30 staff-initiated engineering or
technology interest groups on local or
overseas knowledge sharing activities

that allowed some 420 staff members
to expand their knowledge horizons,
promote face-to-face sharing of
information and insight, and build
networks beyond our organisation.

To enable staff to discover new
knowledge on the KM Platform, we
published a bi-weekly e-newsletter
“Knowledge Communities Digest” and
developed online knowledge tools like
“Share”, "Follow”. Other initiatives
to facilitate staff learning anytime
and anywhere included an E-learning

Centre.

We completed an EMSTF Policy
Manual in June 2013, and launched
it on our Intranet to provide a
handy reference for our middle
management on the rationale behind
the department’s various policies.
Meanwhile, our annual EMSD Quality
and Safety Day continues to be a
focal event for all strategic business
units to share their experiences and
success stories via presentations and
interactive exchanges. The latest
Quality and Safety Day, held in
November 2013, featured two guest
speakers who shared their perspectives
on the “Safety, Quality and Customer
Satisfaction” theme.

Knowledge management is key to
building staff capacity and ensuring
a strong foundation for service
excellence. It is also vital to keeping
EMSTF current and relevant in order
to address the ever-changing needs of
the community. Still in its early stages,
our knowledge management work will
continue to require further effort in
the years to come.
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Corporate Stewardship

REIRERMIRAESZEFHEAKNE
BNE 2BERBIARENEHEE
BE - LINRHEHERRH
Interest groups initiated by our
Engineering Graduate trainees visited
the Electric Vehicle Laboratory of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University to
learn more about electric vehicles.
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Sustain Green Operation

As an early pioneer of energy
efficiency and conservation in Hong
Kong, we have always endeavoured to
save natural resources and protect the
environment through our operations.
We aim to adopt and promote
green practices in procurement by
enhancing the use on the list of
green specification in EMSTF and
promulgating the adoption of green
procurement list in our strategic
business units. Also, we promote
energy savings through optimisation
of energy performance of major
venues.

A key initiative last year was
implementation work for the certification
of our headquarters building to the
Building Environment Assessment
Method (BEAM) Plus Platinum Rating
for Existing Buildings, which calls for

TRER

revamping and upgrading works using
the latest green building technologies.
The relevant works are in good progress.

Summing Up: Create
Public Value for
Community Betterment

Our work under the five strategies
forms the pillars supporting our
focused effort to create public value
for community betterment delivered
via long-term service partnerships
with our clients. On a more macro
level, we are also constantly reviewing
our mode of operation, management
framework and governance,
and seeking opportunities for
improvement.

An example is a review of our current
governance and management system,
for which we have adopted the
Total Quality Management (TQM)

RETRERERZ2E (1)
EMSD Quality & Safety Day

framework since 2003 and won
the Gold Award of the Hong Kong
Management Association Quality
Award in 2006. Recently, we have
begun benchmarking our operations
against the latest TQM criteria for
performance excellence. Through
this exercise, we shall identify the
strengths that we should maintain, the
areas for improvement that we should
pay close attention to, and the gaps
that we would need to fill.

With this, we expect to be able to
review and refocus our management
framework so as to create greater public
value for community betterment.

AEAMEIEERATNEEESE &
203mENRTEHER MO ZTmETE
MIIERZ 2 LR -

Guest speakers from Hong Kong
Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
graced the Quality and Safety Day
2013 to share quality management and
workplace safety experiences.
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Report of the Director of Audit

F£HHTHERR
' Bt E

BYFTRE
MAEE

RERREEZRENI SN ENEZ3ERETIREEER
M ERE  ZEMBREREIFEN2014F3A31 B I
MAXREBEZALFENZERER  EXE2BHRNF S
MER UREESFHEBCRME REMMEMEER -
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B REEERARVENARES - UEPHEREIFE
R EGFE SRR T B B R SERR R AL -

EFTHIRYEAE

BONBERRERNBAHZFUHERRELER - HE
BRCEEESFEP) FTOERBIBNEH ERETE
Ao BLERIZRRE TEIERE - WHRBIRMITE - A
SREEBRREENFE EAERHERERAL -

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report
To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund set out on pages 42 to 63,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical
Services Trading Fund’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.
430) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading
Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the
Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards.
Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical
Services Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund as at 31 March
2014, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of
the Trading Funds Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission
26th Floor

Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

29 September 2014 Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

HFE2014F3A31HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LEMEF T lu37R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B aE

Note 2014 2013
=E 2] Turnover 3) 5,019,969 4,643,068
BYER AR Operating costs (4) (4,702,662) (4,261,659)
EBERA Profit from operations 317,307 381,409
i ON Other income (5) 133,840 151,468
BEANEHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 451,147 532,877
LEFIER Notional profits tax (6) (70,971) (83,639)
FERF Profit for the year 380,176 449,238
Efth 2 EE Other comprehensive income = -
FEHAZERE Total comprehensive income for the year 380,176 449,238
B E & E /R K Rate of return on fixed assets (7) 31.7% 38.1%
FATEEIB WK AL The notes on pages 47 to 63 form part of these financial statements.

MR — D o
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Statement of Financial Position

R2014F3H31H as at 31 March 2014
(LEMEF T lu37R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Bt
Note 2014 2013 =
ERBEE Non-current assets E'i;
Y -« RIEREEM Property, plant and equipment (8) 831,745 812,742 §
E A E Intangible assets 9) 11,206 16,449 %
INEE ST Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 2,526,557 2,406,245 5
3,369,508 3,235,436 §
)
REEE Current assets §
e Inventories 72,101 73736 &
JE LA % TB AR X Debtors and prepayments (11) 28,099 33,143
e R iE A TR K Amounts due from related parties (22) 215,745 206,905 ﬁ
BITER Bank deposits 2,321,000 2,412,000 e
e MIRTT4E Cash and bank balances 1,185 9,116 g
5
2,638,130 2,734,900 ;lu;
m
B Current liabilities
RPE:] & Customers’ deposits (12) (733,146) (814,981)
JEAST R R Creditors (592,651) (533,340) I
FERTRAE A IR Amounts due to related parties (22) (156,881) (149,764) g
1B Bra B Provision for employee benefits (13) (57,662) (58,720) j
RIEWA Deferred revenue (14) (575,380) (545,665) "gn
FERT 2 E RSB Notional profits tax payable (26,764) (29,488) 2
(2,142,484) (2,131,958) &
REBEEFE Net current assets 495,646 602,942
BEERERBERS Total assets less current liabilities 3,865,154 3,838,378
FRBERE Non-current liabilities
EREFR X Deferred tax (15) (8,803) (6,800)
& B @ FI B S Provision for employee benefits (13) (461,900) (452,684)
(470,703) (459,484)
BEEFHE NET ASSETS 3,394,451 3,378,894
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Statement of Financial Position (ontinued)

R2014F3H31H as at 31 March 2014
(AT Tlz5)7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Bt

Note 2014 2013
BEARRf#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
PN h SN Trading fund capital (16) 706,600 706,600
REBAF Retained earnings (17) 2,307,675 2,307,675
BB Proposed dividend (18) 380,176 364,619

3,394,451 3,378,894

FA7TZ63E MM T AL The notes on pages 47 to 63 form part of these financial statements.

M HmEA—HP -

FR 1A, CHAN Fan, Frank
HEAETE General Manager,

TTREER S Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
20149H29H 29 September 2014



Statement of Changes in Equity

HFE2014F3A31HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LEMEF T lu37R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2014 2013
B
FEEe Balance at beginning of year 3,378,894 3,325,005 )g
FEHREENE Total comprehensive income for the year 380,176 449,238 x:ﬂ
wv
FREMEE Dividend paid during the year (364,619) (395,349) %
:
FREESR Balance at end of year 3,394,451 3,378,894 a
o
2
3
FATE63EMM TR The notes on pages 47 to 63 form part of these financial statements. g
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BERER

Statement of Cash Flows

B Z2014F3H31HIFFE for the year ended 31 March 2014
(LEMEF T lu37R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B aE
Note 2014 2013
EEEANEERE Cash flows from operating activities
BIERF Profit from operations 317,307 381,409
I N Depreciation and amortisation 29,764 25,208
HEYE - REREVHKS Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (196) (20)
1B B &) B H 12 0N Increase in provision for employee benefits 8,158 39,097
JE YR 30 % TR AR FR A (Increase) / Decrease in debtors and
(3gm) / @ prepayments (919) 230
FE U A A IR AL AN Increase in amounts due from related parties (8,840) (58,713)
FERRLD 7 (3En) Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 1,635 (2,084)
FERTIR FREYIE AN Increase in creditors 59,311 97,812
FE T REE A TR XYL A0 Increase in amounts due to related parties 7,117 10,910
BEEI R Decrease in customers’ deposits (81,835) (90,136)
JEFEU A RN Increase in deferred revenue 29,715 51,659
B %EFER Notional profits tax paid (71,692) (103,948)
REEEBERENESTE Net cash from operating activities 289,525 351,424
REBENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
[ B B3 1E A &Y Decrease in bank deposits with original
IRITF AR maturity over three months 50,000 90,000
HNEE B S T FRAVE N Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (120,312) (127,604)
BEME fER Purchase of property, plant and equipment
B ARELEE and intangible assets (43,524) (11,291)
HEWE « REBRBMAE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 196 20
BEIFH =2 Interest received 139,803 155,224
REREBEBNESTFE Net cash from investing activities 26,163 106,349
RMEEENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
ERRE Dividend paid (364,619) (395,349)
ANBMEEENREFE Net cash used in financing activities (364,619) (395,349)
RERERREM Net (decrease) / increase in cash and
CRD) /1 8 hnE5E cash equivalents (48,931) 62,424
REeRERFRENENEH Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 171,116 108,692
BeRERBSMWERER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (19) 122,185 171,116
FATE63B MM AL The notes on pages 47 to 63 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 FESTHEE

2.1 FFEXRAIEH
AP BBREEZRBEEARNEHRARFEE
BAMESFBREEDN (WARRE  EhaE
EBSHMAR BTG BAOERNEEHB
MEER  BERIEARRE) FE o BET
SLEES M EERHBERENT -

2.2 MRV BEHROVER
R BRE BB U RER AL E -

RAFAESHBRE RGN ERATEER
R IR (3t BB - BT - (A RE
REYERHRENAR - UREERE ENK
AL 2 - B A BB BE -
LA B8 B E AR A BE R T R A
EEMHET - #2508 LB BBA RS E -
AR RBZEEH RBIEAHNEREERA
ERIREERER - (i ERA S RERBES
FiRR o

ZEM REMKBENRRSEFERS - 0
AR REFEEFNEY  EFENESt
HRNeRABRER  METEXEEFRANR
MEFH - RISEEFRARNE AR
RAERT °

ETREBESHERMSHRR LS R
EAERENS A - EBRERRIELOMR
o HEHREHAERBEHEETAFEENTH
BRR & TRAEKREARR  SHEEME
RHYIRTE & R K F AIRIERT

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
General

The Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund (EMSTF) was established
on 1 August 1996 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 26 June
1996 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.
430) to provide comprehensive electrical, mechanical and electronic services,
vehicle services, and project and consultancy services to clients.

Government bureaux, departments and autonomous bodies have the freedom
to use the services of the EMSTF or to choose alternative service providers to
meet part or all of their electrical and mechanical service needs.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a collective term
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the EMSTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial
statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application
of the EMSTF's accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the next year.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

The EMSTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into
different categories at inception, depending on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at
fair value, which normally equals to the transaction prices, plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset or issue of the financial liability.

The EMSTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Categorisation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and which the EMSTF has no intention of
trading. This category includes debtors, amounts due from
related parties, bank deposits, cash and bank balances and
placement with the Exchange Fund.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note
2.3.4).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the EMSTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any impairment evidence exists, a loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount
of such impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement
of comprehensive income.

Notional profits tax

The EMSTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap.112). However, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) requires the EMSTF to
pay to the General Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e.
notional profits tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for the year
comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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2 FESTHEE @ Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the EMSTF on 1 August
1996 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value
contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the setting up of the
EMSTF. Property, plant and equipment acquired since 1 August 1996 are
capitalised at their costs of acquisition.

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

- buildings; and

- plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor
vehicles, furniture and fixtures and other equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings 10 — 35 years
= Computer equipment 4 - 10 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 5 -7 years
— Other equipment 7 years
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

The land on which the EMSTF's buildings are situated is regarded as a
non-depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the EMSTF
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses (note 2.7).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives of 4 to 10 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify any indication of impairment. If there is
an indication of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Inventories

Inventories are materials to be consumed in the rendering of services.
They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being
determined using the weighted average cost method. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs.

When inventories are consumed in the rendering of services, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

SIUSWISILLS [BIDUBUIS DY) O} SOION T i 2 ik 4

TEEEIRTEN

=—&—

Bl
|
S
o
#
ofF
m
<
]
—
Bl
o
[0}
e
o
3
N
=
=
S

51



Br RS R MY EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESTHEE @ Significant accounting policies (continued)

29 EERE Cash equivalents
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Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

The employees of the EMSTF comprise civil servants and contract staff.
Salaries, staff gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and
recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions
and housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are
charged as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, the pension liabilities of
the EMSTF are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged
by the Government. For other staff, contributions to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income as incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue from contracts for provision of services at agreed service
level covering a specified period of time is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the period concerned. For other service contracts,
revenue is recognised based on services performed during the
reporting period as a percentage of the total services covered by the
contract.

Fees received but related to services to be performed in future
periods are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the
closing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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23BERIEAE Provisions and contingent liabilities
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the EMSTF has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

The EMSTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the
EMSTF has entered into transactions with various related parties,
including government bureaux and departments, trading funds and
financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period.
Of these, the following is relevant to the EMSTF's financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or loss
in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to profit or loss. There is no impact on the EMSTF's financial
statements as the EMSTF does not have items of other comprehensive
income.

The amendments also introduce a new terminology for the “Statement
of Comprehensive Income” to be renamed as the “Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income”. The use of this new terminology
is not mandatory. The EMSTF has chosen to retain the title of “Statement
of Comprehensive Income”.

The EMSTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet effective for
the current accounting period (note 24).
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3 EXH Turnover
2014 2013
%
gj BEREFIERE Electrical, mechanical and electronic
= services 4,369,603 4,024,865
= HIPLIERS Vehicle services 265,701 268,466
% T2 R e AR Project and consultancy services 363,958 331,226
o Hits Others 20,707 18,511
o
§ w@m Total 5,019,969 4,643,068
i
2
s 4 EERA Operating costs
=L
2014 2013
3
&
'm_‘a ETER Staff costs 2,170,405 2,094,713
1 e Materials 434,729 395,890
ﬁ A E R Contractors cost 1,850,227 1,551,279
'!);51 HekEEER Rental and management charges 26,261 22,536
i —REBERITHFAZ General operating and administration
expenses 190,389 171,123
Q e K g Depreciation and amortisation 29,764 25,208
s EiEA Audit fees 887 910
5
;,; #azE Total 4,702,662 4,261,659
3
3
o 5 HftlA Other income
D
2014 2013
RITEREFE WA Interest income from bank deposits 20,766 25,925
HNEE ST REIF S WA Interest income from placement with
the Exchange Fund 113,074 125,543
#zm Total 133,840 151,468
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6 BERAEH

(@) MEEEREXRAHBNBEMNSHAOT

Notional profits tax

(@  The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive
income represents:

2014 2013
ZHEABLRK Current tax
REAZE TG A B Provision for notional profits tax
for the year 68,968 82,694
FFERETR Under-provision in respect of last year - 5
68,968 82,699
EEBR K Deferred tax
TR ERNESERED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 2,003 940
BEFBH Notional profits tax 70,971 83,639

(b)  WETESTH B & 5w AR E A ARG E A SR 40

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

Ik applicable tax rates is as follows:

2014 2013
HBERMSHAIAF Profit before notional profits tax 451,147 532,877
REBEFEBHE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%

(2013 : 16.5%) FratEHEITH K (2013: 16.5%) 74,439 87,925
— IR ER One-off tax reduction (10) (10)
FERBIURAE TR 52 8 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (3,458) (4,281)
FEERETRE Under-provision in respect of last year - 5
BEBEXH Notional tax expense 70,971 83,639

7 BEEEEERBHR

EEEELRRERUNBEEWE (TREFBRAFIF
BXE) RUETEEFHFEMBHNESX - BEE
EREYE BiE SMREFEE BHKEIR
BEESALUENTRARRTE N EET & ERR
R7.8% (2013 : 7.8% )M EZ »

Rate of return on fixed assets

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed
assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The EMSTF is expected to meet a target rate
of return on fixed assets of 7.8% per year (2013: 7.8%) as determined by the
Financial Secretary.
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8 WX RIERH|’M Property, plant and equipment

TR HFAR
§ EEY -y B EEEE HAhegM wE
ﬁ Furniture
ﬁ Land and Computer Motor and Other
5 buildings equipment vehicles fixtures equipment Total
[0}
g 2% Cost
'—_‘:! R201294R81H At 1 April 2012 950,100 75,958 42,419 61,577 52,087 1,182,141
E 1 Additions - 6,422 380 2,458 1,502 10,762
% HE /5N Disposals - (1,226) (5,194) (11,535) (9,273) (27,228)
o}
% 201363 A31H At 31 March 2013 950,100 81,154 37,605 52,500 44,316 1,165,675
=
M2013F481H At 1 April 2013 950,100 81,154 37,605 52,500 44,316 1,165,675
H N Additions - 14,165 2,837 23,605 2,385 42,992
ﬁ HE /58l Disposals = (29,551) (2,054) (1,465) (7,375) (40,445)
Tl
?% 201453 A31H At 31 March 2014 950,100 65,768 38,388 74,640 39,326 1,168,222
¥
i HitinE Accumulated depreciation
201264818 At 1 April 2012 176,759 65,396 35,255 52,528 30,556 360,494
g FEER Charge for the year 7,841 3,543 3,028 3,102 2,153 19,667
L I / FESH B B Written back on disposals - (1,226) (5,194) (11,535) (9,273) (27,228)
s
% M201363A31H At 31 March 2013 184,600 67,713 33,089 44,095 23,436 352,933
E
N 72013648180 At 1 April 2013 184,600 67,713 33,089 44,095 23,436 352,933
@ FEER Charge for the year 7,841 4,897 2,619 4,446 4,186 23,989
= & / FE8H BB Written back on disposals = (29,551) (2,054) (1,465) (7,375) (40,445)
7201453 A31H At 31 March 2014 192,441 43,059 33,654 47,076 20,247 336,477
I [ FHE Net book value
7201453 A31H At 31 March 2014 757,659 22,709 4,734 27,564 19,079 831,745
120133 A31H At 31 March 2013 765,500 13,441 4,516 8,405 20,880 812,742
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10

11

BEEE Intangible assets
BB HERR
R
Computer software licences and
system development costs

2014 2013
2% Cost
REF] At beginning of year 47,692 47,163
N Additions 532 529
R At end of year 48,224 47,692
-5 F Accumulated amortisation
REH) At beginning of year 31,243 25,702
FEER Charge for the year 5,775 5,541
RER At end of year 37,018 31,243
R R E Net book value
PRFLR At end of year 11,206 16,449
HMEESFR Placement with the Exchange Fund

HNEE B & 17 FUA 8 525.26612 78 7T (2013 : 24.062
BAT) Hh2BBTARABFR  3.266 5T
(2013 : 2.06218 L) ARE AR A E AKREH R
REEFIE - ZFERARNE (HERBRE) - BK

TEERIURBER ©

INEESTFRFEBEEFIABTHEEESRAE -

EXRETESREMBABECFNFHFEREDR -

%

3IFHSNERSESE L —AFENTHFERES - M
EFREBEE TRAF/0%  2014FEELEXREF

3.6% ' 2013F BEFF5.0%

FE WS bR K B2 FBLAY R K

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted to
HK$2,526.6 million (2013: HK$2,406.2 million), being the original placement
of HK$2,200 million plus HK$326.6 million (2013: HK$206.2 million) interest
paid but not yet withdrawn at the end of the reporting period. The term of the
placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the amount of
original placement cannot be withdrawn.

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined every January.
The rate is the average annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s
Investment Portfolio for the past six years or the average annual yield of three-
year Exchange Fund Notes for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 3.6% per
annum for the year 2014 and at 5.0% per annum for the year 2013.

Debtors and prepayments

2014 2013

JE YRR Debtors 1,702 693

SEARLEN Prepayments 86 176
INE R & 77 FREETFIL& Accrued interest from placement with

the Exchange Fund 22,428 29,666

SRITFERESTRE Accrued interest from bank deposits 3,883 2,608

wEE Total 28,099 33,143
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12

13

14

EFRI® Customers’ deposits

2014 2013
WRREA TWENR ]S Deposits received from related parties 733,100 814,366
REMEPWEAE]S Deposits received from other customers 46 615
g Total 733,146 814,981
EEEARE Provision for employee benefits

AR ERSHAERARESMIRHENRE S TF
BREaHEEORMENGFTEE (5RHF2.10)

IEFE WA

HEHARERE BERBRNBEHSNER -

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and
obligations on contract end gratuities payable to contract staff for services
rendered up to the end of the reporting period (also see Note 2.10).

Deferred revenue

This represents contract fees received in advance for which services have not
yet been rendered.

2014 2013

WEREA TWEH B AL E A Contract fees received in advance from
related parties 561,507 533,330

HEME PRI BEHE L EA Contract fees received in advance from
other customers 13,873 12,335
et ol Total 575,380 545,665
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16

17

18

I FE B K

VAR B B IS AR 2R P BERR RO R AE 75 7R A = 2 AR AR D
DAREHEFNNES

Deferred tax

Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as follows:

BEERETER Hith
BEENITERBIE ERMER &t
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary

and amortisation  differences Total
20129481858 Balance at 1 April 2012 13,758 (7,898) 5,860
ReEmkak (BE) / kR (Credited) / Charged to
statement of comprehensive
income (70) 1,010 940
20133 A31H&H Balance at 31 March 2013 13,688 (6,888) 6,800
2013F4 A1 B &8k Balance at 1 April 2013 13,688 (6,888) 6,800
REERERNR Charged to statement of
comprehensive income 1,538 465 2,003
201438310 &8 Balance at 31 March 2014 15,226 (6,423) 8,803
EEESER Trading fund capital
I RBNEHRETIZEEELSNKRE - This represents the Government's investment in the EMSTF.
REZF Retained earnings
2014 2013
FHEEER Balance at beginning of year 2,307,675 2,223,056
FER2ERG Total comprehensive income for the year 380,176 449,238
AR B Proposed dividend (380,176) (364,619)
FREER Balance at end of year 2,307,675 2,307,675
BERE Proposed dividend

MBEAEHEREEBREFELA2A KNS REHES
BREHKBRRZENFEEETEEHLHA100%
BfZREHE (2013 :50%) {EH - BN MMT AT
(2013 : 1.418%T) -

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total comprehensive
income for the year and the dividend payout ratio of 100% (2013: 50%) stated
in the annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury, plus an additional amount of zero (2013: HK$140 million).
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19 RERERRE

Cash and cash equivalents

2014 2013
HE RRITHER Cash and bank balances 1,185 9,116
RITHFHK Bank deposits 2,321,000 2,412,000
NEt Sub-total 2,322,185 2,421,116

R R AR A3 ME A MR T Less: Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months (2,200,000) (2,250,000)
ReRERES Cash and cash equivalents 122,185 171,116

20 EIE Commitments
(a) BAEIE Capital commitments

201430310 ELRLEE S KRG ENBR

At 31 March 2014, the EMSTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided

RPELBBEAAENT : for in the financial statements, as follows:

2014 2013
EHEREL Authorised and contracted for 3,927 9,536
B REL Authorised but not yet contracted for 36,103 34,170
g Total 40,030 43,706

(b) EEBHELNERE

H2014F3A318  BETABEN L REEDE
BERNEARARITNREERGHESREA

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments under the non-

cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:

2014 2013
TiERiE1F Not later than one year 6,280 4,192
BB FETBBSF Later than one year but not later than
five years 3,569 5,455
e Total 9,849 9,647
21 REER Contingent liabilities

M2014F3A31H  ETRLEESR —RITASA
TREREFEHMI, 71688 T (2013 : 68288 7T)
BHORBEMZRITIREBENBESEERE 58
REARETREBEESMEEAL -

At 31 March 2014, the EMSTF had provided a bank with counter-indemnity in
respect of performance bonds for HK$17.16 million (2013: HK$6.82 million)
issued by the bank in favour of certain clients who are related parties of the

EMSTF.
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22 EHEBEALTNRS

23

BTEMBHRRPSTRENZZIN  EAFEARH
FEATETNEZRRS  AJAKND
(@) MEZEALRENRBEEREREFTRER

% BE TR I RBRERE - ELRS
A AEEA 50,1488 7T (2013 : 46.37878
JL) c EE RO MAMEI (L% R -

(b)y BHEEALIRENRERESLE  HAMA -
RRITER KRBT o L RISEREA8,530&8 B T
(2013 : 7,670887T) - &L EEMAMN 4 [E
TERCAR] A o

(0 MEAEALBANEBECEEREEEIRERSE
iy o FE EMMAKA A1,0008 %8 T (2013 ¢
26088 7T) °

RS A T REMRES - RARAIBOEEE - A
MEBEALTRENRYE  AEERGTERETAR
AR RATZAM B ER KR E - & A AU E 2 B R A
RERERUE -

5ot 765 FL B i TR

231 BEBER
RETRELELLERLABRRENERTE
DETHER - RBERETRLELSHNEBE
FIERMNS BT ARSI ERA

232fEERR
FERRESRITANE R —FEAKEBRTEE
eI B—HEZHBBEGEE -

BETRZEESNEERR - TEEORNER
IR~ RITERRINERSFR ©

IR E B BERA S - HAEENEERR
BIE - REEREEERR - AECHEFRSF
NBEBFFIRRT - EXMNERSFR - HEH
EERRTER -

BETREEESHNERMEEMARENRSRE
ERRASNEREE

Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other
material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a)

Services provided to related parties included electrical, mechanical and
electronic services; vehicle services; and project and consultancy services.
The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$5,014
million (2013: HK$4,637 million). This amount was included in turnover
under note 3.

Services received from related parties included maintenance,
accommodation, central administration and auditing. The total cost
incurred on these services amounted to HK$85.3 million (2013:
HK$76.7 million). This amount was included in operating costs under
note 4.

Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out
projects and motor vehicles. The total cost of these assets amounted to
HK$10.0 million (2013: HK$2.6 million).

Services provided to related parties were priced on a cost-plus basis. Services
received from related parties were charged at the rates payable by the general

public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost

recovery basis for services which were available only to related parties.

Financial risk management

Investment policy

Surplus cash is invested in financial instruments including fixed deposits.
It is the EMSTF's policy that all investments in financial instruments should
be principal-protected.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial
loss.

The EMSTF's credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank deposits
and placement with the Exchange Fund.

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated credit risk
is minimal. To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with
licensed banks in Hong Kong. For the placement with the Exchange Fund,
the credit risk is considered to be low.

The maximum exposure of the financial assets of the EMSTF to credit risk
is equal to their carrying values.
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23 BRERERER (&) Financial risk management (continued)

3RBES AR Liquidity risk
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nBECRARE - EAREEEARTESRARE
HEMNE ERER

BETRESEZSHRMAANRESREDNRER
mBEERER  EBRAMFRESRERER

BIRZEESNEEES  BRUAIMNA
BEHREREANESTR - ANBETIZE
EESHRBESMRIRE - FILEAEEARNR
PHESEMR

23.4 PR @ &

5 L H5 P 5 R R BB T 3 B R L -
FERERAIE - D RATFENERRRRER
EFIEEH -

ATEFERBESHMTANAFEGETSH
REPHMKDOER R EETRZSERSH
BROGEFBDEEENXFE  EMHNE L
Tt BLEERNAFERETHK - M8 ARE
Ll SRR SHA A ESR » MBHEEE T g
FEERAERME TREELS N R MM
1 e

ReRnEfEARESHTANRERERES
RS =SB mMEBORE BETREEES
SEEAMBEANRSTEN KRR - ARHER

ANEESRTIAHNTRIESMIA -
B ER

E¥RREERTIANQAFERRRNRSRE
& HE R B FH KB R

BETRSEESRABEANEERAR ERE
SRMIABRE D RIABTTRANA

23.6 H fth B 75 L B2

BIREEESCANEF —ABERINERES
BFREX (ME10) NESMAERY SRR -
201453 A31H » R &2013F K2014F 1 &
FINROS0EES MEMEENE - G506
[E & T R {4 15 1 A0/ 21,0508 % 7t (2013 ¢
1,0008%7T) °

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The EMSTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk
by forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working
capital of the EMSTF to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. As the EMSTF has a strong liquidity position,
it has no significant liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market
interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Since all of the EMSTF's bank deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their
fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they
are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not
affect their carrying amounts and the EMSTF's profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
EMSTF is not exposed to material cash flow interest rate risk because it
has no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The EMSTF does not have significant exposure to currency risk as
substantially all of its financial instruments are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

Other financial risk

The EMSTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest
rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every
January (Note 10). It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2014, a 50 basis
point increase/decrease in the interest rates for 2013 and 2014, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the
year and reserves by HK$10.5 million (2013: HK$10.0 million).
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23 BRERERER (&) Financial risk management (continued)

23.7 A&
EEBRTERSNSRIANATFEARBERS
HERAMTISREST - MRS SR
18 - BIARE S E b b B 5 A RS B4 R B 1
TRE BT AR AT -

AR T A NEE QX FERSEREE KA
BRINRFIEARRNEA

24 CHEGENREBZE201453831HLEFE

s RAEMMERT ~ MERRREAEE
A2

BEEAVBRERELZA BB SHMASERMZ
BIEE] - TERIRRRE - ZFER] - MENRERER
B E2014F3A3MBIEFERARER - THRBRAIE
BT R AR AP AR R A o

KETREEESERREER]  MENRREESR
RERMARIRRGELNTBRETNE - E2BAA
IE PSR SRR EER] - MEARRES KA
REEHRETIREEESMERERREMBIRRBEK
EATE -

THIH 3R EEAME T R R se & 5| Bk B R A BF
WA AL IR B E R EE -

Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. In the
absence of such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using
present value or other valuation techniques, using inputs based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position
at amounts equal to or not materially different from their fair values.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements.

The EMSTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the
period of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the EMSTF's results of operations and
financial position.

The following developments may result in new or amended disclosures in
future financial statements:

EUTEHR 2%
B R EX
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

EREFENFE 165 [ - R K[
REBEERIFEI8 [ELEE]
COICHINE

— BBITE R PR AT A

BB ERE365 [ EERE ] WERT
—FEeREEN KD SENRE

TR BMELRFSE (SR TA]

BERUBRELRENSTE [REFFPAHZIKRA

201651 A1H
1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property,
Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38,
Intangible Assets
— Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

201451 A1H
1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of Assets
— Recoverable Amount Disclosures of
Non-Financial Assets

201851718
1 January 2018

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

201751 H1H
1 January 2017

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
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